From 1 May 2021, the Local Government and Elections (Wales) Act 2021 sets out a
statutory requirement that: As soon as reasonably practicable after a meeting of a
community council, and in any event before the end of seven working days
beginning with the day on which the meeting is held, the council must publish
electronically a note setting out—

(a)the names of the members who attended the meeting, and any apologies for
absence;

(b)any declarations of interest;
(c)any decision taken at the meeting, including the outcomes of any votes.

Barry Town Council meets this duty by publishing this information in the form of draft
meeting minutes which will be displayed electronically within 7 working days after the
meeting. It should be noted that these minutes are DRAFT and not agreed until the
next meeting.

BARRY TOWN COUNCIL

MINUTES OF AN EXTRAORDINARY MEETING OF THE HALLS, CEMETERIES
AND COMMUNITY FACILITIES COMMITTEE HELD ON TUESDAY 18 NOVEMBER
2025 AT 7:00PM

PRESENT: Councillor N Hodges (Chairperson) together with Councillors Aviet,
Clarke (Town Mayor Ex-Officio), Dancey, E J Goodjohn, Hennessy and
McKinney.

ALSO PRESENT: Rachel Honey-Jones — Chief Officer
Thomas Thorne — Cemeteries Manager
Lyndsey Thomas — Administrator
Councillor S Hodges — Observer
Councillor Payne — Observer

A188. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
ClIr lannucci-Williams.

A189. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

None were received.

A190. WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS (WALES) ACT 2015

RESOLVED: that the Well-Being of Future Generations (Wales) Act
2015 be received and noted.



A191.

A192.

A193.

A194.

TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE HALLS,
CEMETERIES AND COMMUNITY FACILITIES COMMITTEE HELD
ON 1 SEPTEMBER 2025

The Chief Officer notified the committee that the outstanding actions
regarding public consultation will be actioned in the New Year as it was
deemed more appropriate to wait until after the Christmas period
concerning sensitive matters.

RESOLVED: that the minutes of the meeting of the Halls,

Cemeteries and Community Facilities Committee held on 1
September 2025 be approved and signed as a correct record.

BUDGET MONITORING REPORT TO 31 OCTOBER 2025

Members were provided with a report outlining the Committee’s income
and expenditure in the 2025/26 financial year as at the end of October
2025.

RESOLVED: That the budget monitoring report to 31 October 2025
be received noting the projected net overspend of £35,047 in
2025/26.

DRAFT HALLS, CEMETERIES AND COMMUNITY FACILITIES
COMMITTEE ESTIMATES FOR 2026/27

The Chief Officer informed the committee that the current overspend is
due to the unscheduled tree work and security costs. These costs could
not be anticipated when the budget was set.

The Chief Officer commented that the Responsible Finance Officer
recommends a 5% increase.

RESOLVED: that the report was received and noted

CEMETERY FEES AND CHARGES 2026/27

The Chair reminded members that the CPI is at 3.8%.

Councillor Hennessy commented that 2.2% was not feasible.

The Chair stated that he felt the committee needed to bite the bullet and
recommend a 5% increase to the next meeting of the Finance, Policy &

General Purposes committee.

Councillor Hennessy supported this proposed increase, adding that he
believed that the committee had no choice.

The Chair added that it was important the protect the Council’s biggest
asset and biggest business.



A195.

Councillor Payne noted that whilst a business, it was important to look
after where loved ones go, including biodiversity projects and caring for
graves.

The Chief Officer stated that 50% of Barry Town Council’s business is
within the Cemetery and it was important that it is sustained. She added
that the proposal of 5% will be felt by loved ones in the future.

Councillor S Hodges pointed out that the proposed increase goes out to
public consultation. She added that if the suggestion is way off, the
public will let the Council know.

The Chair commented that it should be easy to defend price rises as the
public are aware of rising costs. He said that ultimately a person pays
the fees for their rights to a burial plot and burial but from there it is a free
service.

RESOLVED: that the report was received and noted

RECOMMENDATION:

1) That the recommendation of a 5% increase is referred to the
meeting of the Finance, Policy and General Purposes
Committee on 8 December 2025

2) That the Vale of Glamorgan is advised of the proposed increase
in Porthkerry Cemetery fees and in particular the increase in the
excavation charges

PIONEER HALL AND CEMETERY APPROACH COMMUNITY
CENTRE FEES AND CHARGES 2026/27

The Chief Officer informed the committee that she had asked the
Facilities Team Leader to do some research on similar hall spaces to
check that the fees are at market rate.

She also advised the committee that a report would likely come to the
next meeting regarding the possibility of allowing bouncy castles in the
halls, provided the hirers show evidence of Public Liability Insurance.

Councillor Payne stated she would be inclined to reject the proposal as
children have previously died on bouncy castles. She said that the public
view of the Council should something tragic occur would be that Barry
Town Council allowed it to happen.

The Chief Officer commented that if the committee were certain to reject
then the idea can be parked for the time being.

Councillor S Hodges warned members that the Council faced a risk of
reputational damage should something bad happen. She advised that



A196.

A197.

A198.

A199.

A200.

A201.

the Council need to understand their legal standing if people break the
rules at the hall.

Councillor Payne enquired if there were signs at the halls stating that
bouncy castles weren’t allowed and if these could be introduced.

RESOLVED: that the report was received and noted

RECOMMENDATION:

1) that a recommendation of no price change for the hall hire is
referred to the meeting of the Finance, Policy and General
Purposes Committee to be held on 8 December 2025

2) that posters stating bouncy castles are not permitted are
introduced at both halls

TRANSFER OF EXCLUSIVE RIGHT OF BURIAL

RESOLVED: that the Transfer of Exclusive Right of Burial (1638 —
1654 inclusive) be granted to those named on each transfer
request.

GRANTS OF EXCLUSIVE RIGHT OF BURIAL

RESOLVED: that the Grants of Exclusive Right of Burial (14069 —
14083 inclusive) be granted to those named on the interment forms.

CEMETERIES UPDATE

The Cemeteries Manager presented the report to the committee.

RESOLVED: That the report is received and noted.

FACILITIES UPDATE

RESOLVED: That the report is received and noted.

DATE OF NEXT MEETING

RESOLVED: that the next meeting of the Halls, Cemeteries and
Community Facilities Committee will be held on Monday 5 January
2026.

EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS & PUBLIC

RESOLVED: That in accordance with section 1 (2) of the Public
Bodies (Admission to Meetings) Act 1960, in view of the



A202.

A203.

confidential nature of the business about to be transacted, it is
advisable in the public interest that the press and public are
excluded from the remainder of the meeting.

REQUESTED CEMETERY BINS

Councillor Hennessy said that of the options provided he felt that
concrete bins would look better as the black ones wouldn’t be in keeping
with the current designs present at the Cemetery.

Councillor S Hodges asked if it might be worth considering that some
bins are taken away if they are being misused for domestic rubbish.

Councillor Payne raised an issue surrounding green waste. She
expressed a wish for a split bin with a green waste option to limit litter
bins.

The Cemetery Manager advised that whilst green waste options are a
great idea, it means that staff have to sift through the bins as the public
often do not adhere to the allocated bin purposes. He added that there
is currently a green waste bin at Porthkerry Cemetery but so far it has
never been able to be emptied without staff having to sort through first.

The Chair agreed that the plastic street style bins aren’t the most
attractive but he liked that they had a lid to make it harder for people to
fill them with domestic rubbish.

The Chief Officer advised that it was very difficult to find a supplier that
makes the concrete style bin to remain in-keeping with the current style
of the Cemetery. She suggested that in future they may not be an option
and so the switch to plastic bins may need to occur either way.

RESOLVED:

1. That members received and noted the report.

2. That the committee approves the phased replacement of
Cemetery bins, beginning with an initial batch of 6-8 units

3. That option 3 is chosen as the preferred model for procurement

4. Thatthe Council authorise the disposal of redundant bins as per
asset disposal protocols

5. That the target implementation date be set for April 2026,
subject to supplier availability

CEMETERY PLANT MACHINERY

Councillor Hennessy asked if the proposal was accepted, would the
Council be covered to move equipment to Porthkerry Cemetery.



A204.

A205.

A206.

The Cemetery Manager confirmed that the plan would be to take
machinery to the Cemetery with a trailer which would then increase
productivity as current Porthkerry backfills are carried out by hand.

RESOLVED:

1. That members received and noted the report.

2. That members approve the replacement of current cemetery
plant machinery via long-term hire agreements

3. That the current owned machines be decommissioned and
disposed of according to Council asset disposal policies

4. That a target implementation date of January 2026 be agreed,
subject to availability and procurement timelines

5. That the weekly hire costs be approved and included in the
annual budget for Merthyr Dyfan Cemetery maintenance

NEW EQUIPMENT REQUEST

The Chair commented that the report details a small amount of additional
equipment which is within the financial estimates for the Cemetery.

RESOLVED:

1. That members received and noted the report.

2. That the committee approves the purchase of the specified
power tools from option 1

3. That the new equipment be brought into use immediately upon
delivery to support ongoing maintenance and operational
requirements

CEMETERY TRACKING AND SOIL BOARDS

Members unanimously agreed the proposal.

RESOLVED:

1. That members received and noted the report.

2. That the committee approves the purchase of tracking and soil
boards from the approved supplier

3. That the Council authorise the disposal of redundant equipment
as per asset disposal protocols

4. That the new equipment be brought into use immediately upon
delivery to ensure continued compliance with cemetery safety
standards

STRUCTURAL ISSUES AT LODGE

RESOLVED: That the report is received and noted.



A207.

A208.

PORTHKERRY CEMETERY

The Chief Officer informed members of a meeting she had with the Vale
of Glamorgan Council regarding Porthkerry Cemetery. She informed the
committee that the outcome of the meeting was a proposed asset
transfer for Barry Town Council to take on the ownership of the
Cemetery.

RESOLVED:

1. That members received and noted the report.

2. That Barry Town Council seeks formal support from the Vale of
Glamorgan Council for the asset transfer of Porthkerry
Cemetery and adjoining fields

3. That the preliminary ecological, legal, and planning
investigations be commissioned

4. That officers report back to Council once detailed costings,
survey results, and consultation feedback are obtained

CLEOPHAS GILL

RESOLVED:

1) That the report is received and noted.
2) That no action is taken

Meeting Closed at 8:41pm



